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We have received two additional letters commenting on the Tentative

Recommendation on Unfair Competition Litigation (May 1996):
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COMMENTS OF ASSOCIATION FOR CALIFORNIA TORT REFORM

The Association for California Tort Reform (ACTR) suggests that the

recommendations for “repair” of the unfair competition statute

do not go far enough to deal with abuses attendant to the Act. At
the very least, then, ACTR urges the Commission not to retreat
further from its modest recommendations in the face of opposition
from counsel who have found it to be a fertile field for the mining
of their future attorney fees. [Exhibit p. 5.]

ACTR suggests three areas of reform that are not covered by the tentative

recommendation (Exhibit pp. 5-7):

The Act should be amended to preclude the “bootstrapping” of
standing to enforce another statute for which private enforcement
has not been explicitly permitted.…

The term “unlawful business practice” should be further
defined in the Act. The term “unlawful” is not free from ambiguity;
and thus far that ambiguity has served to embrace practically every
conceivable source of law.…

Some standards for standing and justiciability should be added
to the Act.…

ACTR concludes with the hope that the Commission will “reconsider these

additional recommendations for reform of the UCA.” (Exhibit p. 7.)

The suggested revisions go to some of the fundamental principles of the

unfair competition statutes. As ACTR recognizes, the Commission has attempted
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to identify a set of modest procedural reforms that have a reasonable chance to

achieve general support. The Commission has not considered the suggestion to

define or limit the scope of the unfair competition statute. The “bootstrapping”

issue has been considered only in the limited context of whether the unfair

competition statute should be permitted to extend the statute of limitations that

would otherwise apply — and that issue has been postponed for later

consideration in light of its controversial nature. The issue of standing has been

discussed but left untouched, in part because requiring that the plaintiff be an

injured party or typical of the class was not seen as solving the problems

identified in the statute.

The staff does not recommend including any of these features in the present

draft. This would be contrary to the Commission’s attempt to find a consensus

approach. The question remains, however, whether the Commission is interested

in any of these issues for future consideration.

COMMENTS OF ATTORNEY GENERAL

M. David Stirling urges the Commission to “defer action … on the proposed

revisions until the potential problems with these aspects of the proposed

revisions can be addressed.” (Exhibit p. 1.) The staff does not believe that deferral

is needed to resolve the concerns expressed. Mr. Stirling is concerned that the

provisions relating to binding effect (Section 17309) and the priority of

prosecutors (Section 17310) “have the potential for seriously undercutting the

ability of the Attorney General and other law enforcement officials to carry out

their responsibility” under the unfair competition laws. (Exhibit p. 2.)

§ 17309. Binding effect of judgment in representative action; setoff

The letter misstates the coverage of Section 17309(a). The binding effect rule

does not apply to enforcement actions. As discussed in Memorandum 96-67, the

provision should be applied only to what it is intended to cover — it speaks only

to the binding effect of a private representative action on other members of the

general public who might later try to bring another representative action. This is

all the rule would govern. It does not govern or influence the effect of a public

prosecutor’s enforcement action. The developing, unclear, contradictory,

confused (pick your adjective) case law on res judicata in this area is not affected.

Consequently, we cannot agree with Mr. Stirling’s conclusions based on his

reading of Section 17309. If the law of res judicata is as Mr. Stirling suggests (see
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Exhibit pp. 2-3), then defendants will continue to have the incentive to settle that

they have now, because Section 17309 has no effect on that law.

The staff thinks that the clarifications proposed for Section 17309 and its

Comment in Memorandum 96-67 at pages 19-20 should deal with this concern.

§ 17310. Priority between prosecutor and private plaintiff

Mr. Stirling writes (Exhibit p. 2-3) that draft Section 17301

recognizes law enforcement officials’ primary authority to enforce
the unfair competition law only on the condition that the prosecutor
“seek substantial restitution to the general public.” This provision
effectively does away with the Attorney General’s and other law
enforcement officials’ prosecutorial discretion to decide in a given
case whether restitutionary recovery is appropriate given all the
facts and circumstances.… [I]f the prosecutor does not seek
substantial restitution, the private plaintiffs’ class or representative
action may be coordinated with the prosecutors’ action and/or may
proceed in tandem with it, thus effectively eliminating the
prosecutor’s ability to control the litigation.

….
If the stipulated judgment obtained by the Attorney General or

District Attorney in a consumer protection case does not bar a
subsequent private action against the same defendants for the same
unlawful business practice, then no defendant has any incentive to
settle with the Attorney General or District Attorneys.…

This concern revolves around the rule in Section 17309(b)-(c) intended to

encourage “substantial restitution” to the general public. This addresses the

frequently expressed concern that prosecutors may shade the settlement of

monetary claims toward civil penalties at the expense of restitution to

individuals who comprise the “general public” in the case. Note, however, that

the draft statute does not require any particular form of restitution nor does it

establish a right to restitution. It only provides a procedural right of private

plaintiffs to seek to be heard on the issue in a pending case. If the prosecutor’s

action is filed first, then the private plaintiff cannot intervene at all unless the

enforcement action does not seek substantial restitution. If a private plaintiff’s

action was filed first, the action is stayed upon the prosecutor’s entry, then the

private representative action may be reinstituted if the prosecutor’s action does

not result in substantial restitution. These rules should encourage substantial

restitution, and to that extent, they will have a potential effect on the prosecutor’s

discretion, as Mr. Stirling fears.
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The letter does not indicate what changes would need to be made to remove

the Attorney General’s objections. It appears that nothing less than a statutory

rule providing absolute priority to public prosecutors’ enforcement actions

would be acceptable. That would codify the reported results in the trial court

decisions (including the Computer Monitor Litigation, see Memorandum 96-67,

Exhibit pp. 65-69). But the issue is far from settled and we do not find the

authorities cited in Mr. Stirling’s letter or in the amicus brief submitted in the

Computer Monitor Litigation to be conclusive. Nor can we make the leap from

the rule that a government suit on behalf of the public can bind private members

of the public (Rynsburger), to the conclusion that a prosecutor’s action under the

unfair competition statute must always preclude private representative actions or

participation.

The Commission has attempted to find a sensible compromise solution,

working with the California District Attorneys Association and representatives of

the Attorney General’s office who have attended meetings and submitted written

comments, as well as representatives of public interest groups and private

litigators. We don’t know that Mr. Stirling is suggesting adoption of an absolute

preference rule, but that appears to be the direction of this comments. An

absolute priority for the Attorney General would be vigorously opposed by the

private plaintiffs and public interest bar. The Commission may recall that some

very early draft proposals, including the original suggestions of Prof. Fellmeth,

included a greater conclusive effect of prosecutor actions. The letters attached to

the main memorandum amply demonstrate the difficulty the non-prosecutor bar

has with accepting the draft proposal for a relative statutory preference for

prosecutors. (See Memorandum 96-67, pp. 28-30.)

The staff does not see any compromise approach to resolving Mr. Stirling

concerns with this section, as long as it contains the “substantial restitution”

standard or equivalent language. It appears that he would agree with the

recommendation of Alan Mansfield, Milberg Weiss Bershad Hynes & Lerach,

that this section should  be “deleted in its entirety.” (See Memorandum 96-67, p.

29.) Tom Papageorge, CDAA, has made clear on several occasions that there are

differing opinions in the prosecutor community on the acceptable level of private

involvement and prosecutor priority. (See, e.g., Memorandum 96-67, p. 31.)

Jeffrey Margulies, Haight, Brown & Bonesteel, speaking from the defense

perspective, has urged a position consistent with the Mr. Stirling’s letter, to give

the Attorney General a greater or total authority to “intervene in and take over
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any prosecution ‘in the public interest,’ regardless of whether he has filed his

own action.” (Memorandum 96-67, p. 31.)

As reported in the main memorandum, Prof. Fellmeth is also “not sure how

to improve the current draft,” from the perspective of trying to find a balanced

approach. The staff thinks that the question for the Commission comes down to

either approving Section 17310 largely as it stands or deleting it from the draft

and leaving the matter to case law.

Respectfully submitted,

Stan Ulrich
Assistant Executive Secretary
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